AD NUMBER

ADB214460

NEW LIMITATION CHANGE

TO

Approved for public release, distribution unlimited

FROM

Distribution authorized to DoD only. Other requests shall be referred to Embassy of Australia, Head. Pub. Sec. -Def/Sci., 1601 Massachusetts Ave., NW, Washington, DC 20036.

AUTHORITY

DSTO ltr dtd 2 Feb 2000

THIS PAGE IS UNCLASSIFIED



AR-008-528 DSTO-TR-0155

Mathematical Modelling of Optical Image Propagation in Water

B.W. Koerber

DOD ONLY

Embassy of Australia Attn: Joan Bliss Head. Pub. Sec.-Def/Sci. 1601 Massachusetts Ave., NW Washington, DC 20036

19960926 126

Officers of the Defence Communities of Australia, UK, USA, Canada & NZ may have access to this document Others refer to Document Exchange Centre, CP2-5-08, Campbell Park Offices, CANBERRA ACT 2600 AUSTRALIA

DTIC QUALITY INSPECTED 3



LIMITED RELEASE

Mathematical Modelling of Optical Image Propagation in Water

B.W. Koerber

Land, Space and Optoelectronics Division Electronics and Surveillance Research Laboratory

DSTO-TR-0155

ABSTRACT

The results are presented of a preliminary mathematical modelling study of optical image propagation in water using Monte Carlo methods.

RELEASE LIMITATION

Distribution additional to the initial list is limited to qualified officers of the Defence Department and the Defence Community of Australia, UK,USA, Canada and New Zealand. Other requests should be referred to Chief, Land, Space and Optoelectronics Division Electronics and Surveillance Research Laboratory.

DEPARTMENT OF DEFENCE

DEFENCE SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY ORGANISATION

DTIC QUALITY INSPECTED 3

Published by

DSTO Electronics and Surveillance Research Laboratory PO Box 1500 Salisbury. South Australia, Australia

Telephone: (08) 8259-5555 *Fax:* (08) 8259-5055

© Commonwealth of Australia 1996 AR- 008-528 July 1996

Conditions of Release and Disposal

1. This document is the property of the Australian Government; the information it contains is released for defence purposes only and must not be disseminated beyond the stated distribution without prior approval.

2. The document and the information it contains must be handled in accordance with security regulations applying in the country of lodgement, downgrading instructions must be observed and delimitation is only with the specific approval of the Releasing Authority as given in the Secondary Distribution statement.

3. This information may be subject to privately owned rights.

4. The officer in possession of this document is responsible for its safe custody. When no longer required this document should be destroyed and the notification sent to: Senior Librarian, Defence Science and Technology Organisation, Electronics and Surveillance Research Laboratory.

DSTO-TR-0155

Mathematical modelling of optical image propagation in water

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

A basic set of mathematical models using Monte Carlo methods and other mathematical techniques has been developed to provide information required to assess the performance of underwater imaging systems. In particular, information is provided directly applicable to the High performance UnderWater range-gated Imaging system (HUWI).

The models were validated in a program of measurements at Happy Valley reservoir carried out to provide accurate comparison radiometric data to validate the models.

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK

Author

B.W. Koerber Land, Space and Optoelectronics Division

The author has worked for DSTO since 1955. His experience has included optical propagation effects for the Laser Airborne Depth Sounder program (LADS). In addition to mathematical modelling of both atmospheric and underwater light propagation, the author has been the principal in an experimental program to measure water optical properties including the design and utilisation of absorption, scattering and transmittance monitors.

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK

DSTO-TR-0155

Contents

1. INTRODUCTION					
2. PROPAGATION OF LIGHT IN WATER 1					
2.1 Attenuation of a beam of light					
2.2 Absorption and scattering					
2.3 Volume scattering function					
2.4 Multiple scattering					
3. IMAGING OF LIGHT THROUGH WATER					
3.1 Point spread function					
3.2 Optical transfer function					
3.3 Fourier transform for point spread function and optical transfer function					
3.4 Fourier transform for volume scattering function and restoring coefficient					
4. MONTE CARLO MODELLING OF PROPAGATION OF LIGHT IN WATER					
4.1 General					
4.2 Standard Monte Carlo model					
4.3 Limit of applicability of standard model					
4.4 Semi-analytic Monte Carlo model					
5. MODEL OF IMAGE PROPAGATION IN WATER					
6. RESULTS OF MODELLING STUDIES					
6.1 Magnitude of light flux at the target plane					
6.2 Magnitude of back-scatter and target reflected signals					
6.3 Propagation of bar-chart images through water					
7. CONCLUSIONS					
8. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT					
9. REFERENCES 10					
Figure 1 Target and backscatter signals for $c = 0.2m^{-1}$					
Figure 2 Target and backscatter signals for $c = 0.6m^{-1}$					
Figure 3 Intersection of beam and field of view					
Figure 4 Impulse response functions for water for $c = 0.2m^{-1}$					
Figure 5 Bar chart images through water for $c = 0.2m^{-1}$					
Figure 6 Bar chart images through water for $c = 0.6m^{-1}$					
Figure 7 MTF calculated from VSF 17					
Figure 8 MTF calculated from impulse response function					

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK

1. Introduction

A mathematical modelling study has been carried out to provide information on the propagation of optical images through water. This information is necessary for the efficient design and operation of underwater viewing systems. At present, information is required to assess the effectiveness of the High performance UnderWater Imaging system (HUWI).

Although a transmission window exists in the visible waveband of the electromagnetic spectrum, viewing underwater is severely limited due to the inherently high attenuation properties of water, even in the clearest water. Scattering and absorption are the fundamental mechanisms that affect the attenuation of light in water. Scattered light from the illuminating light source spreads a veiling glare over the target under observation. The HUWI system operates using a pulsed laser transmitter beam and range-gated techniques to provide optimum imaging performance by ensuring that only the scattering occurring near the target is seen by the receiver.

Since multiple scattering effects greatly complicate the light propagation process in water, mathematical modelling of light propagation in water involves extensive computations. For the present study, Monte Carlo methods have been found suitable for handling the difficult problem of modelling optical image propagation in water.

2. Propagation of light in water

2.1 Attenuation of a beam of light

A beam of monochromatic light propagating in uniform water is attenuated exponentially with distance. The beam transmittance is

 $T = e^{-cr} \tag{1}$

where *c* is the total attenuation coefficient

and *r* is the distance travelled.

2.2 Absorption and scattering

The light beam is attenuated due to the effects of two independent processes: absorption and scattering. Absorption is a transformation of radiant energy into another energy form, generally into heat or chemical potential energy. Scattering refers to a process by which the direction of individual photons is changed without energy loss.

DSTO-TR-0155

The attenuation coefficient is given by

c = a + b

(2)

where *a* is the absorption coefficient and *b* is the scattering coefficient.

2.3 Volume scattering function

Light is scattered in all directions from the beam. The intensity of this scattered light varies with the angle from the beam (for natural waters, forward scattering is predominant).

The volume scattering function $\beta(\theta)$ is defined by the following equation (see reference 1)

$$\beta(\theta) = \frac{dI(\theta)}{Edv}$$
(3)

where $dI(\theta)$ is the radiant intensity of scattered light in the direction θ to the beam,

E is the irradiance at the volume element

and dv is the volume element.

The scattering coefficient *b* is obtained by integration of the volume scattering function:

$$b = \int_0^{4\pi} \beta(\theta) d\omega \tag{4}$$

where $d\omega$ is an element of solid angle in the direction θ to the beam.

For a light beam with circular symmetry, equation 4 may be rewritten in the form:

$$b = 2\pi \int_0^{\pi} \beta(\theta) \sin\theta \, d\theta \tag{5}$$

2.4 Multiple scattering

When light propagates over large distances in water, multiple scattering effects become important. Significant amounts of radiant flux may be produced by photons that have been scattered many times.

As a result of this scattering, an initially collimated light beam increases in width as it propagates in water. Since most of the scattered light energy is produced at very small angles to the beam (in natural waters), the beam spreads slowly at first. As the path length increases, the proportion of multiply-scattered light increases and the beam spreads significantly.

DSTO-TR-0155

The effects of multiple scattering must be included in mathematical models describing light propagation in water. A Monte Carlo technique which models the passage of an ensemble of photons has been used to model the propagation of light.

3. Imaging of light through water

3.1 **Point spread function**

The point spread function (PSF) is an important function used in modelling the effects of multiple scattering on the quality of images propagating through water. The PSF is the distribution of light flux in the blurred image of a point source at a specified range from the source. Formal definitions of the PSF are provided in references 2 and 3. For the purpose of the present modelling study, the definition is used for the PSF which makes it identical with the impulse response function.

3.2 **Optical transfer function**

An object under observation may be regarded as a superposition of a complex series of sine waves that are imaged as sine waves. The optical transfer function (OTF) is the ratio of the spatial frequency spectrum of the image to that of the object. The modulus of the OTF is the modulation transfer function (MTF) and the phase of the OTF is the phase transfer function (PTF). For a purely particulate scattering medium (e.g. a water path with scattering particles present but negligible turbulence), there is no preferred orientation for best response and the transfer function has a real value (i.e. the PTF is zero).

3.3 Fourier transform for point spread function and optical transfer function

A switch can be made easily from the PSF in the space-domain to the OTF in the spatial-frequency domain using a Fourier transformation. The PSF and the OTF are a Fourier transform pair. If the scattered light has circular symmetry around the unscattered ray and only small angles are considered, the OTF may be expressed in terms of the Fourier-Bessel transform (reference 2)

$$H(\psi, R) = 2\pi \int_0^{\theta_{\text{max}}} h(\theta, R) J_0(2\pi\theta\psi) \theta \, d\theta \tag{6}$$

where $H(\psi, R)$ is the OTF at spatial frequency ψ (cycles/radian) and at distance R,

 $h(\theta, R)$ is the PSF at angle θ (radians) and at distance *R*,

 $J_0(2\pi\theta\psi)$ is the Bessel function of the first kind and order zero

and θ_{max} is an arbitrarily chosen upper limit to the region in which $\sin \theta \approx \theta$.

The inverse transform is

$$h(\theta, R) = 2\pi \int_0^\infty H(\psi, R) J_0(2\pi \theta \psi) \psi \, d\psi \tag{7}$$

DSTO-TR-0155

3.4 Fourier transform for volume scattering function and restoring coefficient

It was Wells (reference 2) who first discovered another Fourier transform pair involving the volume scattering function $\beta(\theta)$ and the restoring coefficient $S(\psi)$ which appears in complete analogy to the PSF-OTF pair described in section 3.3. This second Fourier-Bessel transform pair is

$$\beta(\theta) = 2\pi \int_0^\infty S(\psi) J_0(2\pi\theta\psi) \psi \, d\psi \tag{8}$$

and

$$S(\psi) = 2\pi \int_0^{\theta_{\text{max}}} \beta(\theta) J_0(2\pi\theta\psi) \theta \, d\theta \tag{9}$$

The decay function is

$$D(\Psi) = c - S(\Psi) \tag{10}$$

where c is the attenuation coefficient.

Finally, the decay function, which is independent of range, is related to the MTF by

$$MTF(\psi, R) = \exp(-D(\psi)R)$$
⁽¹¹⁾

where R is the range.

Monte Carlo modelling of propagation of light in 4. water

4.1 General

The propagation of light in water is complicated greatly by multiple scattering effects. Mathematical modelling of this process has been developed using a variety of approaches, with various degrees of success. The Monte Carlo technique was shown to be an adequate modelling method in a previous study of laser light propagation conducted in sea water at Jervis Bay (see reference 4). The Monte Carlo model developed for that experiment has been modified appropriately to create additional versions which provide basic information required in the present study of image propagation in water.

4.2 Standard Monte Carlo model

The standard Monte Carlo model simulates the random passage in water of individual photons from the transmitted light beam through a series of scattering events. For each segment of the three-dimensional photon trajectory, values are determined for the distance travelled before scattering and for the scattering angles by making random selections from appropriate cumulative probability data for these parameters. Random numbers required for this procedure are generated by the computer. Weighting factors 4 **UNCLASSIFIED**

DSTO-TR-0155

are computed for each photon trajectory to account for the absorption losses along that path (the photon can be conceived of as a large packet of identical photons travelling in the same direction along the trajectory with individual photons being absorbed at various points along the path). Transit times through the water are computed for each photon path. After the computations have been repeated for a large number of photons, a space-time map is built up of the distribution of light flux in the water.

The magnitude of chance variations in the results ("noise") due to the random Monte Carlo process is reduced by increasing the total number of computed photon trajectories. A considerable additional improvement is obtained by taking advantage of the symmetry of scattering around the light beam. This gain is accomplished by combining photons that pass through all sections of a specified annular region on a surface centred on the axis of the transmitter beam. Each incident photon is weighted appropriately to allow for the magnitude of the area of the particular annulus in which the photon is collected.

The standard Monte Carlo model is very suitable for computations of light flux received at the opposite end of a one-way path from a light source as a high density of photons is achieved. Thus for the study of the performance of the range-gated imaging system HUWI, the standard model is used to compute values of the distribution of transmitted light flux at the target plane. Circular symmetry is assumed about the axis of the transmitter beam and photons are collected in annular regions. Similarly, the standard model is used to compute values of the impulse response function over various ranges from the object plane by again utilising circular symmetry about the beam (in this case the beam is an impulse).

4.3 Limit of applicability of standard model

The Monte Carlo modelling methods are used to compute the envelope of back-scatter and target reflected signals at the receiver of the underwater range-gated imaging system. By comparing these results with measurements, the accuracy of the models can be verified. The standard Monte Carlo model is a purely statistical computation of an ensemble of photon trajectories through the medium, with the length and direction of each trajectory segment obtained from random selections made from the relevant probability functions applying for the medium. Results are produced by accepting only those photons which are collected within the defined receiver aperture area and within the specified field of view. For the receiver of the range-gated imaging system, the geometric constraints are very restrictive, resulting in a very small probability of success for any given photon trajectory. To use the standard Monte Carlo model, it is necessary to compute a very large number of photon trajectories, and to relax the geometric constraints on the receiver to provide a much larger collecting area and a much wider field of view. It was found that the latter procedure produced large errors in the computed magnitude and shape of the envelope of back-scatter and target reflected signals. Thus, it was decided to use a semi-analytic Monte Carlo model (reference 5) to conduct this aspect of the modelling study, since the semi-analytic method offers an effective means for modelling with realistic geometric constraints and hence should provide the required accuracy in the results.

DSTO-TR-0155

4.4 Semi-analytic Monte Carlo model

The semi-analytic Monte Carlo model uses a combination of statistical and analytic techniques to determine the receiver signal. The photon is conceived of as a large packet of identical photons travelling along the same path through the water. Segments of the photon trajectory are computed using the standard Monte Carlo method. When a segment terminates at a point within the volume enclosed by the field of view of the receiver, the probability is computed of the fraction of photons that would be redirected towards the receiver. The receiver signal is increased by an amount representing the proportion of these photons arriving at the receiver without further attenuation.

The estimated value of the proportion of photons collected by the receiver is given by

$$S = p(\theta')d\omega \exp(-cr)$$
(12)

where $p(\theta')$ is the scattering phase function at angle θ' ,

 θ' is the angle between the photon trajectory segment and the receiver direction, $d\omega$ is the solid angle subtended by the receiver aperture,

c is the attenuation coefficient and *r* is the distance to the receiver.

The phase function is

$$p(\theta) = \frac{\beta(\theta)}{b}$$
(13)

where $\beta(\theta)$ is the volume scattering function and *b* is the scattering coefficient.

Since

$$\int_{0}^{4\pi} \beta(\theta) d\omega = b \tag{14}$$

it follows that

$$\int_{0}^{4\pi} p(\theta) d\omega = 1 \tag{15}$$

and hence $p(\theta')d\omega$ is the correctly scaled value of the probability of a photon scattering in the direction of the receiver.

When each scattering event occurs within the field of view of the receiver, the value *S* is added to the receiver signal, and the weighting factor for the packet of photons is reduced by the value $p(\theta)d\omega$. The remaining photon packet then proceeds to the next scattering point which is computed using the standard Monte Carlo method.

5. Model of image propagation in water

The mathematical modelling method used in this study of optical image propagation in water is based on a technique well known in the analysis of linear electrical and optical systems. This approach involves characterising the system (water path in the present case) by its response to an impulsive input. For a complete description of the theory of this technique see reference 6.

For the present study, the object (target) may be either self-luminous or irradiated by a transmitted beam of light. The object is regarded as a collection of independent point radiators, the strength of which varies from point to point according to the radiance of the object (radiance is the radiant flux emitted in a particular direction per unit of projected surface area per unit solid angle). The imaging system maps the radiance distribution of the object into an irradiance distribution at the image plane (irradiance is radiant flux per unit surface area).

Thus for the modelling, the input function is decomposed into a linear combination of delta functions (impulse functions) each appropriately weighted according to its location. Using information of the response of the system to a single delta function (impulse response function), this is applied separately to each of the input component delta functions and their separate output responses are determined. Since the system is linear, the overall output is calculated by simply adding together all the individual outputs corresponding to each of the separate inputs. Mathematically, this process is described as the convolution of the input with the impulse response function of the system.

In the present study, the standard Monte Carlo model is used to compute values of the impulse response function for the water path under consideration. Calculations are made assuming that the imaging system is an ideal thin lens. The response function is taken as the conjugate image of the apparent distribution of rays at the object plane determined by extrapolating backwards the final segments of the photon trajectories in the water at the lens surface. Results are obtained for various path lengths and for specified optical properties of the water.

6. Results of modelling studies

To analyse the performance of the laser range-gated imaging system, it is necessary to obtain three main types of information from the mathematical modelling studies. Information is required in respect of:

- (1) the magnitude of light flux at the target plane from the transmitter beam
- (2) the envelope of back-scatter and target reflected signals returned to the receiver
- (3) the quality of the image of the target after propagation through the water back to the receiver.

DSTO-TR-0155

Results obtained from these three studies are described in sections 6.1, 6.2 and 6.3, respectively.

6.1 Magnitude of light flux at the target plane

An extensive modelling study was carried out previously (reference 4) to compute light flux in the water and above the sea surface at various ranges and for various orientations of a laser light source located in the sea. The standard Monte Carlo model was used for these computations. This study was carried out for comparison with a series of experimental radiometric measurements of laser light propagation in sea water performed in 1991 at Jervis Bay. The results of these combined studies are given in detail in reference 4.

6.2 Magnitude of back-scatter and target reflected signals

The magnitude of back-scatter and target reflected signals at the receiver have been computed using the semi-analytic Monte Carlo model described in section 4.4. For the computations, the following values were assumed for the parameters involved:

- (1) transmitter beam divergence 5 degrees
- (2) receiver field of view 5 degrees
- (3) target distance 10 metres
- (4) target size 2.44 metres \times 1.22 metres
- (5) target a bar-chart with equal size bars and white bar reflectivity 0.90
- (6) two sets of optical properties of water
 - (i) $c = 0.200 \text{ m}^{-1}$, $a = 0.063 \text{ m}^{-1}$, $b = 0.137 \text{ m}^{-1}$
 - (ii) $c = 0.600 \text{ m}^{-1}$, $a = 0.300 \text{ m}^{-1}$, $b = 0.300 \text{ m}^{-1}$.

The results obtained for the two types of water are shown in figures 1 and 2, respectively. It should, be noted that the backscatter plotted in the preceding figures is not significant for approximately the first 20 nanoseconds as the field of view of the receiver does not overlap the beam of the transmitter for some distance. Thus the geometry of the system shown in figure 3 precludes the reception of signal for the first 15 nanoseconds. Thereafter, the signal initial rise is determined by a combination of response time, intersection volume and the water properties. All of these factors have been included in the model.

6.3 **Propagation of bar-chart images through water**

The standard Monte Carlo model is used to compute data on the response of the water medium to a light impulse input. A special version of the model has been developed incorporating the convolution procedures necessary to compute the image of a barchart as it propagates through water (see section 5). Figure 4 shows the results of calculations of the impulse response function for the water having a value $c = 0.200 \text{ m}^{-1}$. Figure 5 shows the results of the calculations of the images of a series of bar-charts of fixed angular subtense at the imaging system (fundamental spatial frequency 250 cycles/radian) at various ranges in water with $c = 0.200 \text{ m}^{-1}$. For comparison, results are shown in figure 6 of the bar-chart images computed for water with $c = 0.600 \text{ m}^{-1}$ (these results are given at shorter ranges to compensate for the greater attenuation 8 **UNCLASSIFIED**

DSTO-TR-0155

losses in the more turbid water). Figures 5 and 6 only show relative values of irradiance plotted on the Y axis. Absolute values may be obtained by utilising computed results of back-scatter and target reflected signals described in section 6.2.

Values of the MTF of the water with $c = 0.200 \text{ m}^{-1}$ have been calculated using Wells' theory described in sections 3.3 and 3.4. Figure 7 shows the results of calculating MTF directly from the volume scattering function using equations 9, 10 and 11. Figure 8 shows the results of calculating MTF from the impulse response function (point spread function) using equation 6. Values of MTF were also calculated at a frequency of 250 cycles/radian (and at several harmonics) using a fast Fourier transform on the results of the bar-chart image calculations shown in figure 5. Good agreement was obtained using the three methods for values of MTF at high frequencies while moderate agreement was obtained at low frequencies. These comparisons of computed values of MTF provide checks on the validity of Wells' theory and on the accuracy of the various modelling steps involved in the image propagation study.

7. Conclusions

(1) A basic set of mathematical models using Monte Carlo methods and other mathematical techniques has been developed to provide information required to assess the performance of underwater imaging systems. In particular, information is provided directly applicable to the underwater range-gated imaging system HUWI.

(2) A program of measurements at Happy Valley reservoir was carried out to provide accurate comparison radiometric data to validate the models. The results of this comparison are reported elsewhere (reference 7).

(3) It is desirable that a study should be carried out to determine whether "noise spikes" can be eliminated or reduced in the results obtained using the semi-analytic Monte Carlo model (see figures 1 and 2). The presence of these spikes may cause a significant loss in accuracy in the output data using this method.

(4) A study should be carried out to investigate some observed variation in computed values of MTF at lower frequencies using the various methods described in section 6.3. An attempt should be made to determine whether the observed effect is due to limitations of the theory or of the modelling procedures.

8. Acknowledgement

The author would like to thank Mr P. Wilsen for his efforts to bring this report to publication.

DSTO-TR-0155

9. References

- 1. Jerlov N.G. "Marine Optics" Elsevier Oceanography Series No 14, 1976
- 2. Wells W.H "Theory of Small Angle Scattering"
- AGARD Lecture Series No 61, OPTICS OF THE SEA, 1973
 3. Mertens L.E., Replogle F.S. "Use of Point Spread and Beam Spread Functions for Analysis of Imaging Systems in Water "Journal of the Optical Society of
- America, Vol 67, No 8, 1977.
- 4. Koerber B.W. Wilsen P.J. "Analysis of Measurements of Laser Light Propagation in Sea Water at Jervis Bay" SRL-0120-RE, 1993.
- 5. Poole L.R., et al "Semianalytic Monte Carlo Radiative Transfer Model for Oceanographic Lidar Systems" Applied Optics, Vol 20, No 20, 1981
- 6. Gaskill J.D. "Linear Systems, Fourier Transforms, and Optics" John Wiley & Sons, 1978.
- 7. Koerber B.W., Adams T., Wilsen P.J. "Optical Propagation Effects of an Underwater Laser Range Gated Imaging System " DSTO-0156-RE, 1995.

DSTO-TR-0155



Figure 1 Target and backscatter signals for $c = 0.2m^{-1}$





Figure 2 Target and backscatter signals for $c = 0.6m^{-1}$

DSTO-TR-0155



Figure 3 Intersection of beam and field of view

DSTO-TR-0155

UNCLASSIFIED



Figure 4 Impulse response functions for water for $c = 0.2m^{-1}$

DSTO-TR-0155





DSTO-TR-0155





DSTO-TR-0155





UNCLASSIFIED

17



Figure 8 MTF calculated from impulse response function

Mathematical modelling of optical image propagation in water

B.W. Koerber

(DSTO-TR-0155)

DISTRIBUTION LIST

DEPARTMENT OF DEFENCE

Defence Science and Technology Organisation

1 shared copy for Chief Defence Scientist circulation **FAS Science Policy** AS Science Corporate Management Document data sheet Counsellor, Defence Science, London Document data sheet Counsellor, Defence Science, Washington Scientific Adviser - POLCOM 1 shared copy Senior Defence Scientific Adviser Scientific Adviser, Army (SA-A) Document data sheet Document data sheet Air Force Scientific Adviser (AFSA) Navy Scientific Adviser (NSA) **Director Trials** Director, Aeronautical & Maritime Research Laboratory Electronics and Surveillance Research Laboratory Director, Electronics & Surveillance Research Laboratory Chief, LSOD Research Leader, Space Based Surveillance LSOD Research Leader, Land Operations LSOD Research Leader, Optoelectronic Sensors and Systems LSOD Head, Special Projects LSOD M. Brennan R. Abbot T. Adams P.J. Wilsen Author 2 copies B.W. Koerber

Defence Central

Technical Reports Centre, Defence Central Library			
OIC Document Exchange Centre (retention)			
Defence Intelligence Organisation Library, Defence Signals Directorate	Document data sheet		
Additional copies as specified by release limitations			
National Technical Information Centre. United States	2 copies		
Defence Research Information Centre, United Kingdom	2 copies		
Director Scientific Information Services, Canada			
Ministry of Defence, New Zealand			
Defence Science and Technology Organisation Salisbury, Research Library	8 copies		
DSTO Library Maribrynong	Document data sheet		
DSTO Library Pyrmont			
HQADF			
DGFD (Sea)			
RAN			

÷

DSMPW SOSCI DNW(SO MCD) RANTEWSS HYDROGRAPHER

Department of Defence				1. Page Classification			
DOCUMENT CONTROL DATA SHEET (of document)					g/Caveat		
3a. AR Number AR 008-528	3b. Laboratory Number DSTO-TR-0155	3c. Type of Report4. Task NumberTechnical reportNAV95/037					
5. Document Date July 1996	6. Cost Code 821921	7. Security Classification 8. No of Pages 20			20		
10. Title Mathematical Modelling of Optical Image Propagation in Water		* L	U	U	9. No of Refs	7	
		Document	Title	Abstract			
		S (Secret) C (Confi) R (Rest) U (Ur			clas		
		* For UNCLAS	SSIFIED do N, use (L) ir	ocs with a so document	econdary distribution box.		
11. Author(s) B.W. Koerber		12. Downgrading/Delimiting Instructions July 1999					
13a. Corporate Author and Ac	ldress	14. Officer/Position responsible for					
Electronics & Surveillance Research Laboratory PO Box 1500, Salisbury SA 5108		Security:CLSOD Downgrading:CLSOD					
13b. Task Sponsor App Navy			elease:	CLSOD			
15. Secondary Release Statement of this Document Distribution additional to the initial list is limited to qualified officers of the Defence Department and the Defence Community of Australia, UK,USA, Canada and New Zealand. Other requests should be referred to Chief, Land, Space and Optoelectronics Division Electronics and Surveillance Research Laboratory.							
16a. Deliberate Announcement Access additional to the distribution list is limited to the Defence Community of Australia, UK, USA, Canada and New Zealand							
16b. Casual Announcement (for citation in other documents)							
X No Limitation Ref. by Author, Doc No. and date only							
 17. DEFTEST Descriptors Mathematical models, Images, Propagation, Monte Carlo method, Underwater, Range gating, Imaging systems 			ect Codes				
19. Abstract	<u>,</u>				<u> </u>		
The results are presented of a preliminary mathematical modelling study of optical image propagation in water using Monte Carlo methods.							

DEPARTMENT OF DEFENCE DEFENCE SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY ORGANISATION SCIENCE CORPORATE MANAGEMENT BRANCH DSTO SALISBURY RESEARCH LIBRARY-REPORTS DISTRIBUTION PO BOX 1500 SALISBURY SA 5108

 Reference:
 R9607/7/9 Pt3 Folio No. 51

 Contact:
 Natalie Mahlknecht

 E-mail:
 natalie.mahlknecht@dsto.defence.gov.au

Telephone: (08) 8259 6255 Facsimile: (08) 8259 6803

2nd February 2000

To All Copyholders cc: To the Team Leader of Records & Archives

ADB214460

Notification of Downgrading/ Delimiting of DSTO Report

Please note that the Release Authority has authorised the downgrading/ delimiting of the report detailed here:

DSTO NUMBER	DSTO-TR-0155
AR NUMBER	AR-008-528
FILE NUMBER	UNKNOWN
REVISED CLASSIFICATION / RELEASE LIMITATION	UNCLASSIFIED Approved for Public Release.

Please amend your records and make changes to your copy of the report itself to reflect the new classification/ release limitation.

Natalie Mahlknecht Reports Distribution Officer DSTO Research Library, Salisbury

Received 5 Jone 2000 Computed 5 June 2000